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Administrative/General Questions
1. How many agencies allowed for team-up?
a. There is no limit. However, please keep in mind that having more team members could increase overhead costs, which will be scored accordingly to our scoring criteria. More information can be found in Section IV.F criterion 6 and 7.
2. Is there a minimum amount of the proposed effort that is required to be performed by the Prime recipient, either in dollar or percentage terms?
a. No. It is up to each applicant to decide the level effort for the prime.  The prime is responsible for the work performed by its subcontractor(s) and other team members. A non-technical prime that is mostly administrative could receive lower scores for criteria 5, team qualifications. As indicated in the response to question 1, high overhead costs by the prime will be scored accordingly to our scoring criteria. More information can be found in Section IV.F criterion 5, 6 and 7.
3. Will the power point slides be shared with participants by email?
a. The PowerPoint slides have been uploaded to the solicitation website, located at: https://www.energy.ca.gov/solicitations/2020-01/gfo-19-307-advancing-envelope-technologies-single-family-residential
4. If we would like to work with a foreign manufacturer on transferring their technologies to our market will this affect the competitiveness of the application due to funds needing to be spent predominantly in CA?
a. It depends. If the CEC grant funds are not paying for any foreign or out-of-state expenditures, then use of foreign technology should not impact the competitiveness of the proposal based on scoring criteria 7 (Section IV.F).  Additionally, Section III.D.7, item 7 states that CEC funds cannot be spent outside of the United States or for out of country travel. However, match funds may cover these costs if there are no legal restrictions. Thus, if match funds are used to cover all of the out-of-country costs (e.g., equipment, transportation and testing), and the demonstration and tests are occurring in California, then there may be little or no impact to the proposal’s competitiveness. 
5. Can some subcontractors be from out-of-state?
a. Yes, subcontractors can be from out-of-state. Please note, if grant funds are requested for out-of-state subcontractors, this be scored according to criterion 7 – for all funding groups (Section IV.F of solicitation manual).  If Match Funds were used for out-of-state subcontractors, criterion 7 will not be impacted.  Additionally, all companies that do business in California are required to be registered and in good standing with the California Secretary of State before the project can be recommended for funding at a CEC business meeting (see Section II.A.3. of the solicitation manual).
6. Is the Prime recipient required to be a CA corporation/California-based entity?
a. No. See response to question 5.
7. So how do you rate people who have never had CEC contracts?
a. According to scoring criteria 1 (Section IV.F), “An applicant that has not received funds from the Energy Commission (e.g. contract, grant, or loan) through an agreement with the Energy Commission will receive 15 points.”
8. What is considered for “Project Team Past Performance” – individual participants from each organization or the organizations themselves? 
How far CEC checks the Past Performance; last two years?
a. The scoring team will review both existing and past CEC work of the applicant. Information such as past project performance, quality of deliverables, timeliness, rejected invoices and negative audit findings will be considered. This can include discussing past and current performance with relevant CEC staff. The score team will use this information and evaluate past performance using scoring criteria 1. (Section IV.F). Scoring criteria 1 applies to the applicant, “The applicant—defined as at least one of the following: the business, principal investigator, or lead individual acting on behalf of themselves—received funds from the Energy Commission (e.g., contract, grant, or loan) and entered into an agreement(s) with the Commission.” Therefore, organization and/or individuals, such as the principal investigator, are considered for this criterion. 

The CEC reserves the right to check past performance during any period of time for which information is available.
 
9. Attachment 7 Budget Form explains that "Spent in California" means: 

(1) Funds in the "Direct Labor” category and all categories calculated based on direct labor (e.g., fringe benefits, indirect costs and profit) are paid to individuals that pay California state income taxes on wages received for work performed under the agreement. Payments made to out-of-state workers do not count as “funds spent in California.” However, funds spent by out-of-state workers in California (e.g., hotel and food) can count as “funds spent in California.”; AND
(2) Business transactions (e.g., material and equipment purchases, leases, and rentals) are entered into with a business located in California. 

For out-of-state contractors, does the direct labor and related indirect costs associated with time spent in the state count as Funds Spent in California? For example, if our subcontractor’s out-of-state employees will be spending periods of time in California, are the labor costs attributable to the number of hours they physically spend in the state count toward funds spend in California? 
a. No, these direct labor costs will continue to be classified as out-of-state.

10. The RFP for this grant funding opportunity indicates that applicants may submit multiple proposals for the same Group. However it is unclear if applicants may submit proposals for different Groups. Are applicants allowed to submit separate proposals for different Groups (i.e., a proposal for a Group 1 project AND a proposal for a Group 2 project)?
a. Yes. Applicants may submit applications for Groups 1 and 2. If multiple proposals are submitted from the same organization, the applicant must ensure they have the technical and administrative capacity to complete all of the work they are applying for. In addition, if an applicant submits multiple applications that address the same project group, each application must be for a distinct project (i.e., no overlap with respect to the tasks described in the Scope of Work).

All groups
11. Are you considering passive solar design? It is a discipline including orientation, awnings, use of shade trees, etc., and based on traditional building practices. It can form a tight barrier over insulation, and it will reduce heat transmission through to living space by transforming photons to electricity.
a. It is unclear which group this question is referring to. Passive design could be an element of the project for groups 2 and 3, but it cannot be the focus of the proposal. The focus of the solicitation is to advance emerging envelope technologies and bring them closer to market and for the technologies to have the potential of meeting the performance goals of each group, such as in Tables 3, and 5. The cost of passive solar design elements must be included as match costs and cannot be paid for with grant funds. Passive solar design will not be allowed for Group 1.
12. Can you include Ultra-High-Performance-Concrete (UHPC) and Hemp-crete in Groups 2 and 3? The UHPC and Hemp-crete can be troweled on like plaster, molded, and sprayed.
a. Envelope systems for Group 2 should be prefabricated, so solutions that need troweling would need justification on how it fits into a prefabricated design. Group 3 does not have that requirement, so these materials could be acceptable. Additionally, if using these materials for Groups 2 and 3, please be sure to explain in the project narrative, how they contribute to potentially meeting the requirements in Tables 3 and 5 (see pages 23 and 26 under project narrative discussion in technical approach). 

13. Can advanced fenestration innovation include PV integration in addition to EE metrics?
a. Yes, if the technology has the potential for meeting the performance goals listed in Table 1 of the solicitation manual.  Please keep in mind that the intent of this solicitation is to advance energy efficiency and affordability of advanced fenestration technologies. As indicated in Addendum 1, if the target performance for the selected technology is different than those listed in Table 1, provide your response to the following in the Project Narrative under Technical Approach: a) reason for the difference in performance, b) explain how it will still exceed current building energy efficiency standards, c) how it will increase deployments in the retrofit market, and d) how it will benefit California electric IOU ratepayers, such as energy and cost savings.

14. This is further clarification to previous question.  For groups 1 & 3, are window glazing technologies with solar generation capability eligible for this GFO?
a. For group 1, see response to question 13.  For group 3, window glazing technologies with solar generation are eligible if it is part of the envelope measures for mobile homes, and has the potential of meeting the performance goals in Table 5 and the requirements of the solicitation as described in Section II.B.2.c.  Windows cannot be the sole focus of Group 3.  Group 3 emphasizes fire resiliency and affordability since the emphasis is “materials and designs that are comparative in cost to standard mobile home construction.”  As indicated in Addendum 1, if the target performance for the selected technology is different than indicated in Table 5, provide your response to the following in the Project Narrative under Technical Approach: a) reason for the difference in performance, b) explain how it will meet or exceed California, Title 24, 2019 Building Energy Efficiency Standards, and c) how it will benefit California electric IOU ratepayers, such as energy and cost savings.

15. Would you be interested in solar PV printed on hard-anodized aluminum sheathing (0.032" or 0.016"), with conversion efficiency over 40% (breakthrough multijunction semiconductor technology by the original inventor of multijunction thin film solar PV).
a. For Group 1, solar PV may be included if the technology has the potential for meeting the performance goals listed in Table 1 of the solicitation manual, but should not be the focus. See response to questions 13 and 14 for more information.
b. For Group 2, any generation/PV technology will need to be integrated into prefabricated advanced envelope packages for retrofitting existing California low-rise multifamily buildings. Please note that one of the goals of this group is to make packages that are affordable.
c. For Group 3, we will consider PV technology if the submitted proposal provides an analysis on how the selected technology may meet or exceed the goals listed in Table 5 and provides a summary of the information in Table 6. (Section II.B.2.b) See response to questions 13 and 14 for more information.
16. What level of R&D is acceptable in the proposed work? In other words, should the proposal only include existing and proven systems and technologies?
a. The California Energy Commission determines the level of Research & Development by the proposed technology’s Technology Readiness Level (TRL). TRLs are method for estimating the maturity level of a certain technology. (see the Key Words/Terms). Please also see the definition of pre-commercial technologies in Section I.B. and the TRL levels for each group.  Only Group 1 comes closest to near commercialization
i.  Source: U.S. Department of Energy, “Technology Readiness Assessment Guide”. https://www2.lbl.gov/dir/assets/docs/TRL%20guide.pdf 
b. Projects under Group 1 must be in the Technology Demonstration and Deployment stage within technology readiness level (TRL) 6-9. Window technologies that meet the baseline requirements of Group 1 are not acceptable, as this is not a rebate/incentive program for standard technology.
c. Projects under Group 2 & 3 must be in the Applied Research and Development stage within technology readiness level (TRL) 3-5. Existing and proven technologies can be included-see response to question 17.
17. Under groups 2 & 3, what level of R&D is acceptable in the proposed work? In other words, should the proposal only include existing and proven systems and technologies?

As an example, should a prefab retrofit package only include proven insulation and air sealing technologies?  Or some R&D is allowed to further develop one or both component technologies?
a. A prefabricated retrofit package could include proven technologies as well as technologies that still need some research and development in order to address the performance goals of Tables 3 and 5. If existing technology can meet the stated research goals, then it would be acceptable to use existing technologies. Group 2 is focused on making and applying the prefabricated facades affordably and feasibly, and Group 3 focuses on incorporating fire resistive and energy efficiency into new mobile home construction.
18. Will the commission consider projects that focus on lifecycle cost-effectiveness instead of first incremental costs only?
a. All applications must provide first incremental cost analysis. However, applications may also include analysis on lifecycle cost-effectiveness. Please provide assumptions, such as estimates on equipment life, interest rate, all the incremental cost items and savings, energy savings and escalation over time. You may also specify this information under “other” on Tables 2, 4, and 6.  
19. Can Group 2 or 3 proposals focus only on windows, or are they required to focus on the whole envelope?
a. [bookmark: _gjdgxs]Proposals submitted to Group 2 cannot only focus on windows. However, window/fenestration technologies can be part of the proposed prefabricated advanced envelope packages.
b. Proposals submitted to Group 3 cannot focus primarily on windows. An important element to Group 3 is fire resistivity, and windows may have difficulty addressing all of the performance goals listed in Table 5 (Section II.B.2.b).
20. Are you considering smart window?
a. For Group 1, smart window technology, defined as windows using smart glass whose light transmission properties are altered when voltage, light, or heat is applied, such as electrochromic windows, is eligible if it has the potential of meeting the performance goals in Table 1 (See Section II.B.2.a). See also addendum 1 to address target performance that is different than those listed in Table 1. 
b. For Group 2, smart window technology (e.g., electrochromic windows) could be considered if part of a prefabricated advanced envelope package for retrofitting existing California low-rise multifamily buildings and cannot be a standalone project. The prefabricated envelope package must have the potential to meet the requirements in Table 3 (See Section II.B.2.b) 
c. For Group 3, smart window technology could be considered if part of the prototype mobile home to be developed and built and cannot be a standalone project focused only on windows. The prototype mobile home must have the potential of meeting the performance goals in Table 5 (See Section II.B.2.c.) See also addendum 1, to address target performance that is different than those listed in Table 5. 

Group 1
21. On slide 16, for table 1, is the <$6 per square ft research goal an incremental cost or the expected total cost?
a. Incremental cost.
22. The RFP for GFO-19-307  identifies an incremental cost target of ≤ $6 per square foot as one of the research goals for fenestration systems in Group 1. Given that Title 24 considers measure costs through the lens of 30-year cost-effectiveness, will the Commission entertain proposals that focus on lifecycle cost-effectiveness rather than on incremental construction costs? Basing this research on cost-effectiveness provides several benefits compared to using first costs. These benefits include, (a) harmonization with Title 24’s established methodology of determining cost-effectiveness; (b) Potentially opening up a broader range of research options, and (c) Using a metric (TDV) that encourages load-shifting strategies. If the Commission does not want to entertain proposals that focus on cost-effectiveness, please provide background and/or rationale for the $6.00/s.f. research goal.
a. All applications must provide first incremental cost analysis. However, applications may also include analysis on lifecycle cost-effectiveness. In the project narrative (2nd bullet on page 21), provide all assumptions that is the basis of the life cycle costs as described in the response to question 18 and include the baseline and target in Table 2. 
23. On slide 16, the current performance goals in group one seem to be unrealistic. Is it possible to have the performance goals revised to something more in line with the following:
Baseline: Residential $14.50/ft2 with R3.3 and VT >0.4 or and VT  >0.4 Research Goals: Incremental Cost ≤ $6/ft2 with R-5 to R-7 (U-Factor) and VT  >0.4
a. No. Despite the aggressive nature of the performance goals, we will not be revising them. However, we will consider technologies that do not meet all goals. However, Addendum 1 issued on February 7 now requires that technology “have the potential to meet the performance goals in Table 1…” It further states that if the target performance for the selected technology is different than indicated in Table 1, provide the following information in the Project Narrative under Technical Approach:  a) reason for the difference in performance, b) explain how the technology will meet or exceed current building energy efficiency standards, c) explain how it will increase deployments in the retrofit market, and d) how it will benefit California electric IOU ratepayers, such as energy and cost savings.
24. The current performance goals in group one are challenging, can Table 1 in Group 1 be revised to the modified version below?

Backup information in regards to the revision of the baseline and goals is:

· The requirement of Vt>0.6 and SHGC=0.2  results in a light-to-solar-gain (LSG) ratio of
3. This performance is not possible with traditional glazing. As an example, a common standard for high performance residential glass is Cardinal 366. A double pane IGU built with this glass results in a Vt=0.64 and SHGC=0.28, or a LSG=2.3. It would also be better to use light-to-solar-gain as the metric because that would allow flexibility in solutions dependent on the regional conditions.
· A residential baseline performance of R-5 to R-7 is much higher than the current residential standard. The 2019 T24 standard requires a U-factor of 0.30 (R3.3), which is also equal to the current ENERGY STAR requirements in California climate zones. This performance level should be considered the baseline.
· A window at R-10 performance level requires at least quadruple-pane glazing and a very high performance framing system. A quadruple pane window is unrealistic to meet the incremental cost targets. Triple-pane windows are typically in the performance range of R5 - R7 and seems to be a more realistic target.

Revised Table 1
	
Technology
	
Baseline
	
Research Goal

	Fenestration
	
Residential $14.50/ft2 with R- 5 to R-7 R3.3 and VT >0.6
>0.4
	Incremental Cost ≤ $6/ft2 with R- 10 R-5 to R-7 (U-Factor) and VT>0.45

	
	
	U-Factor ≤ 0.20

	
	
	
SHGC≤ 0.23

	
	
	High Insulating windows designed replace current stock of low- efficiency window

	
	
	Performance goals are for the whole window and do not include installation costs.


a. Despite the aggressive nature of the performance goals, we will not be revising them. See response to question 23. 
25. Is Group 1 for retrofits only, or can it include new construction?
a. Group 1 is retrofits only.
26. Group 1 - If the area-weighted average of the home meets the criteria would that be acceptable or does each individual window have to meet or exceed the criteria?
a. Each individual window has to meet or exceed the criteria

Group 2
27. For projects in Group 2 does the work have to focus on both roof and wall envelope components or can it focus on just the roof?
a. It must focus on wall envelope components. It cannot focus on just the roof. The response provided at the pre-bid was incorrect.
28. For Group 2 can we focus on Fenestration improvements?
a. The project cannot strictly focus on fenestration improvements and must be integrated with walls.
29. Just to confirm is group 2 solely focused on retrofits?
a. Yes. Group 2 is solely for retrofits. 
30. For Group 2, can some of the funding be used for investigation into the production of these systems, not just their design?
a. Yes, some of the funding can be used for investigation into the production of these systems.  As indicated in Section II.B.2.b, the Proposal’s Project Narrative must discuss “how system costs (capital and / or installation) will be reduced compared to current technology (conventional envelope retrofits). Identify specific measures that facilitate system cost reduction, such as reduced air leakage, improved conduction, reduced solar heat gain, manufacturing improvements (e.g., additive printing), insulation and sealing materials, attachments and fasteners, and improvements to daylight efficiency.” 
31. Are you considering smart window in Group 2?
a. Smart windows (e.g., electrochromic windows) could be part of a prefabricated advanced envelope (façade) package for retrofitting existing California low-rise multifamily buildings.  Please also see response to question 20 for more information.
32. Group 2 - For the window performance levels in group two are you expecting them to exceed the current code or can they be simply code compliant windows?
a. Code compliant windows are acceptable, though exceeding code performance is favorable and will be scored accordingly.

33. Group 2 - Is there intent to further develop fenestration technology within the prefabricated packages? As there are no metrics associated with fenestration.
a. The emphasis is on developing prefabricated façade systems. Group 2 has flexibility to further develop fenestration technology within the prefabricated packages but the emphasis is on the entire façade and not just windows. The metrics in Table 3 indicate the areas of emphasis for the facades. See also response to question 33.

Group 3
34. Group 3: This project addresses new manufactured homes, but what about the thousands of  pre-existing manufactured homes in California that negatively impact the environment and create an enormous energy burden for low-income residents?
a. Group 3 focuses only on new mobile homes that can be located in fire prone areas and that may have been impacted by the recent destructive wildfires in California. These homes are typically located in low-income or disadvantaged communities. We may consider pre-existing mobile homes in future solicitations. 
35. In the location and sample size requirements it mentions that the home must be "in-field installed" and be "assembled on site".  We were interpreting that mobile homes are typically built in factory then transported to the site. 
a.  Is the goal of this grant opportunity to only have them be built on site?
i. No. The mobile homes can be built in a factory.
b.  Or can/should then be built in a factory?
i. Mobile homes can be built in a factory, then transported to a site where the utilities (energy, sewer and water) are hooked up. In-field installation refers to the mobile homes installed at an actual site and not tested at the factory where the mobile home was built.
36. The EPIC Terms and Conditions, under the Equipment section states that the equipment can be used for the *intended purpose as long as needed.  However the recipient cannot sell, lease, or encumber the property during the Agreement term without the CAM’s prior written approval. If CEC funds are utilized for building the pre-fabricated mobile homes:
a. Will the homes themselves be considered “equipment”?
i. For the purpose of this solicitation, the mobile homes would be considered as equipment. In developing the budget (Attachment 6), please provide the cost of the mobile home under the equipment budget sheet. This budget sheet should include costs for meeting the fire resistive and energy efficiency requirements described in Section II.B.2.c. of the solicitation. These items should be listed in the budget sheet, but does not need to be itemized.
b. Does the recipient need to seek approval from the CAM to rent the units during the term of the agreement?
i. Yes, but the grant recipient does not need to provide the CEC with any personal information of the renters when seeking CEC approval to rent.
c. Who owns the mobile homes once the data collection process is over and the agreement term expires?  
i. Title to the mobile homes is with the grant recipient.
d. How does the CEC define the “*intended purpose” in this situation, as the intent is to collect data.  The terms do not address equipment disposition once the term has expired. 
i. [bookmark: _GoBack]Before agreement start date grant recipients must obtain and demonstrate site control where the mobile homes are to be located. Site control can be through ownership or lease agreement for the test site. Site control must be at a minimum until end of agreement term. The cost of the procuring the test sites cannot be paid for by the state grant nor by match funds (see Section I.F.2. which states that match funds do not include the cost or value of the project work site). Test sites should be located in a mobile home park or other suitable location with appropriate zoning.
The “intended purpose” means that after the grant is completed, it is our hope that these mobile homes continue to be occupied and inhabited by individuals or families and serve to encourage the participating manufactured home builder and others to permanently adopt these methods of envelope construction as standard practice.
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